
 

 

 

April 8th, 2025 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 

(dba) Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources 

Open Session Board Meeting 



Agenda 



 

 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
DBA Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) 

100 Third Street 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 

Tentative Agenda for Open Session Board Meeting on April 8th, 2025, at 6:00 PM 
 

This Meeting will be Held in Person Only at: 
 

Dierbergs Market Conference Room 
4655 Osage Beach Parkway 

Osage Beach, MO 65065  
 
             Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for March 11th, 2025 
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

 

• 2023 Final Audit Report 
• February 2025 I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) Monthly Reports 
• February 2025 Children’s Learning Center (CLC) Monthly Reports 
• 2024 Performance Summary 
• 2024 Performance Improvement Plan 
• February 2025 Support Coordination Report 
• February 2025 Agency Economic Report 
• February 2025 Credit Card Statement 
• Resolution 2025-22 

 

Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements 

• Wendy Renner, Evers CPAs – 2023 Final Audit Report 
 
Monthly Reports 
 

• OSL 

• IWYP 

• CLC  
 

Old Business for Discussion 

• Keystone Renovations (Updates) 
 

New Business for Discussion 
 

• Board Member/Secretary Vacancy 

• TCM Rate Increase/State FY 2026 Budget (Updates) 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

CCDDR Reports 
 

• 2024 Performance Summary 

• 2024 Performance Improvement Plan 

• February 2025 Support Coordination Report 

• February 2025 Agency Economic Report 
 
February 2025 Credit Card Statements 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolutions 
 

1. Resolution 2025-22: Temporary Committee Creation – CCDDR POS Agreements Committee 
 

Open Discussions 
 
Public Comment 
 

Pursuant to ARTICLE IV, “Meetings”, Section 5. Public Comment: 
 
“The Board values input from the public. There shall be opportunity for comment by the public during the portion of the 
Board agenda designated for “Public Comment”. Public comment shall be limited to no more than 3 minutes per person 
to allow all who wish to participate to speak. It is the policy of the Board that the Board shall not respond to public 
comment at the Board meeting.” 
 
“Only comments related to agency-related matters will be received, however such comments need not be related to 
specific items of the Board’s agenda for the meeting. The Board shall not receive comments related to specific client 
matters and/or personnel grievances, which are addressed separately per Board policies and procedures.” 
 
Adjournment of Open Session 
 
Closed Session Pursuant to Section 610.021 RSMo, subsection (1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The news media may obtain copies of this notice, and a direct link to the WebEx meeting can be submitted to anyone 
requesting access by contacting: 

Ed Thomas, CCDDR Executive Director 
100 Third Street (Physical Address), P.O. Box 722 (Mailing Address), Camdenton, MO  65065 

Office:  573-317-9233          Fax:  573-317-9332        Email:  director@ccddr.org 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 11th, 2025 
 

 Open Session Minutes 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

 

Open Session Minutes of March 11th, 2025 

 

Members Present   Paul DiBello, Kym Jones (joined after meeting began), Laura Martin, Elizabeth 

Perkins, Angela Richardson, Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

Members Absent    Nancy Hayes  

 

Others Present        Ed Thomas, Executive Director 

 

Guests Present        Jim Rogers, Mary Hayslett (LAI) 

                                 Adrienne Anderson (CLC) 

         Rachel Baskerville, Jeanna Booth, Lori Cornwell (CCDDR) 

                                  

Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion by Paul DiBello, second Brian Willey to approve the agenda as presented. 

  

                               AYE:  Paul DiBello, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                          Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

         ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

                      

Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for February 11th, 2025 

  

Motion by Ro Witt, second Paul DiBello to approve the Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for 

February 11th, 2025, as presented. 

  

            AYE:  Paul DiBello, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                          Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

ABSTAIN:  Angela St. Joan because she was not present at the February 11th, 2025, 

meeting. 

 

Motion carries. 

 

Acknowledgement of Distributed Reports & Documents to Board Members 

                         

• January 2025 I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) Monthly Reports 

• January 2025 Children’s Learning Center (CLC) Monthly Reports 

• January 2025 Support Coordination Report 

• January 2025 Agency Economic Report 

• January 2025 Credit Card Statement 

• Resolutions 2025-12, 2025-13, 2025-14, 2025-15, 2025-16, 2025-17, 2025-18, 2025-19, 2025-20, 

& 2025-21 

 

Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements 

 

None 



Monthly Reports 

 

Our Saviors Lighthouse (OSL) 

 

There were no changes to report this month. OSL is still serving two CCDDR clients. There were no 

reports received this month. 

 

I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) 

 

IWP is still serving one CCDDR client. 

 

Children’s Learning Center (CLC) 

 

CLC’s enrollment did not change. A child passed away last week. CLC has reserved a couple of open 

spots for CCDDR clients. March 24th and April 17th CLC will be open for children instead of having a 

teacher work day. Breaks are also being shortened and adjusted to help cover for loss of funding. Pizza 4 

a Purpose is being held on March 14th. 

 

Old Business for Discussion 

 

None 

 

New Business for Discussion 

 

Keystone Renovations – PCE Change Order 

 

There was an oversight when the original RFP was published. The RFP did not include key fobs and door 

hardware, security glass for the lobby, and accessible push buttons for the exterior doors. Key fob 

capabilities will be added to two additional doors now that OATS is gone. Ed compared the cost to past 

costs and there was not much inflation as expected. The glass is actually cheaper than it was when it was 

installed in the past. This will hopefully be the last of the big change orders requiring Board approval. 

 

Ed was at Keystone today to look at the east side of the building. There was water damage where the 

walls meet the roof that will be patched. 

 

***Kym Jones joined the meeting at 6:15 pm.  

 

 

Motion by Angela St. Joan, second Ro Witt to approve the change order as presented. 

 

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

                      ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

CCDDR Reports 

 

January 2025 Support Coordination Report 

 

The month closed with 337 clients and 9 pending intakes. Medicaid eligibility was at 79.23%. The year-

to-date percentage of claims paid so far is 96.49%. The rebilling was just completed, and CCDDR was 

paid just short of $10,000. 

 



 

January 2025 Agency Economic Report 

 

SB 40 Tax program income was higher than projected and Services program income was lower than 

projected. Medicaid revenues are about .5% lower than they were at this point in 2024. Hopefully the 

2024 amount will be surpassed with rebilling. Overall YTD expenses for the SB 40 Tax program were 

slightly lower than projected and Services program expenses were also slightly lower than projected. 

Expenses in the Partnership for Hope and Special/Additional Needs categories were slightly higher than 

anticipated. Services program expenses did not require offsets from restricted funds. Expenses in the 

Presentations/Public Meetings category on the Services side show higher than anticipated because of 

preorders of supplies for the transition fair. General/Administrative expenses also show higher than 

anticipated because Evers & Company’s final invoice for the 2023 audit was budgeted for December 

2024 but was not received and paid until January 2025. Similarly, Insurance/Broker Fees were also higher 

than anticipated because the Assured Partners broker fee invoice was budgeted for December 2024 but 

was not received and paid until January 2025. 

 

Motion by Paul DiBello, second Ro Witt to approve the reports as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                          Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

January 2025 Credit Card Statements 

 

No questions and a vote not necessary. 

 

Discussion & Conclusion of Resolutions 

 

1. Resolution 2025-12: Approval of Amended Policy 1 

 

This policy was updated to reflect current verbiage and references. 

 

Motion by Kym Jones, second Elizabeth Perkins to approve Resolution 2025-12 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

2. Resolution 2025-13: Approval of Amended Policy 2 

 

This policy was updated to reflect current circumstances and there was a minor update to verbiage. 

 

Motion by Angela St. Joan, second Paul DiBello to approve Resolution 2025-13 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 



 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

3. Resolution 2025-14: Approval of Amended Policy 8 

 

Updates were made to the verbiage and references. 

 

Motion by Laura Martin, second Ro Witt to approve Resolution 2025-14 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

4. Resolution 2025-15: Approval of Amended Policy 9 

 

Updates were made to the verbiage and references. 

 

Motion by Angela St. Joan, second Kym Jones to approve Resolution 2025-15 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

5. Resolution 2025-16: Approval of Amended Policy 13 

 

The verbiage in this policy was updated to reflect current circumstances. 

Motion by Paul DiBello, second Elizabeth Perkins to approve Resolution 2025-16 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

6. Resolution 2025-17: Approval of Amended Policy 22 

 

The references for this policy were updated. 

 

 



Motion by Ro Witt, second Brian Willey to approve Resolution 2025-17 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

7. Resolution 2025-18: Approval of Amended Policy 23 

 

There were minor updates to the verbiage of this policy. 

 

Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Paul DiBello to approve Resolution 2025-18 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

8. Resolution 2025-19: Approval of Amended Policy 24 

 

The policy verbiage and references were updated. 

 

 

Motion by Brian Willey, second Paul DiBello to approve Resolution 2025-19 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

9. Resolution 2025-20: Approval of Amended Policy 33 

 

The policy verbiage and references were updated. 

 

 

Motion by Kym Jones, second Paul DiBello to approve Resolution 2025-20 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 



Motion carries. 

 

 

10. Resolution 2025-21: Approval of Amended Policy 34 

 

The policy verbiage and references were updated. 

 

Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Ro Witt to approve Resolution 2025-21 as presented. 

  

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                        Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

Open Discussion 

 

Ed asked Angela Richardson and Paul DiBello for permission to use their signature stamps on the 

February 11th Open Session Board meeting minutes and the resolutions from this meeting. Angela and 

Paul agreed. 

 

Elizabeth Perkins spoke about the February Board meeting and the motion about taking Lake Area 

Industries off the monthly reports section of the agenda. She wanted to start a conversation with the other 

Board members. She appreciates hearing the “share-outs” and reports each month and personally and 

professionally appreciates active dialogue and open communication. She had mixed feelings about that 

vote. She is not disputing anything with the contract or the joint committee. 

 

Angela Richardson asked if Elizabeth wanted to ask for a specific action on anything or just wanted to 

have discussion. Elizabeth responded that she was looking to start a conversation and hear what others 

think. 

 

Brian said he understood where Elizabeth was coming from but felt that the January 2nd meeting was a 

slap in the face. 

 

Paul DiBello said he feels it would be more constructive if personal feelings were put away. He had 

similar feelings to Elizabeth. He understands the contractual part but feels anyone serving CCDDR clients 

should be able to have a spot on the agenda. 

 

Angela Richardson reiterated that Lake Area Industries is more than welcome to share information during 

the public comment during each meeting, even though they are not listed on the agenda. 

 

Angela St. Joan asked if the contract could be word-smithed to resolve this conflict. Angela Richardson 

asked Ed to speak on this. Angela supports the contract as it is since it shows fiscal responsibility. 

 

Kym Jones stated that all contracts should be the same across all funded agencies. If changes are made, 

those can be put together for next year and the next contract. Angela Richardson said that LAI did 

propose some verbiage changes but that verbiage was not what the Board felt was fiscally responsible 

moving forward. 

 

Adrienne Anderson spoke on behalf of CLC and said that since the contract changes came out at the end 

of year as a surprise and she thinks that is where things have been misconstrued. She thinks if there had 

been more time to process and go over the changes then maybe these things would not be happening. She 

did email back and forth with Ed about her concerns and questions. 



 

Ed sent out a summary of the contract changes the first week of October. Ed stressed that there is no 

waitlist in effect right now and the waitlist policy was put in place so contractual caps could be avoided. 

The waitlist policy would allow funded agencies to serve existing clients and the waitlist would only 

apply to any clients those agencies were not already serving. The waitlist would not prohibit agencies 

from serving those clients, it would just prohibit CCDDR from funding those new clients. Alternatives to 

the waitlist would include a cap in each contract and a non-allocation clause. That clause would mean that 

if for some reason the money is not there, then funding would stop. Clauses like this are standard for 

public entities and one will be incorporated into next year’s contracts. Ed is giving notice now that those 

things may be incorporated into the contracts. 

 

Angela St. Joan asked if having a cap in the contract would make LAI feel better. Ed stated that in the 

past, CCDDR went with the POS contracts instead of including a cap in the contracts because it put risk 

on both sides of the contract. The POS contract allowed LAI to expand and grow their business without 

returning to ask for more funding. Now, the future of tax fund availability is of concern due to different 

bills being introduced this year and in the past couple of years that would reduce or eliminate some or all 

SB 40 Tax funding. Also, SB 40 Tax revenues have not kept up with the increased demand for services 

and costs related to funded agencies doing business.  The waitlist is a cost-limiting mechanism. 

 

Angela St. Joan asked what LAI is doing about income since the invoices cannot be paid without a 

contract. Ed said that if LAI signed the contract today, the contract is currently retroactive and all back 

invoices could be paid. Ed said that as far as the impact on LAI is concerned, Natalie has been sending 

monthly reports even though she is not required to send them. He is sending those reports out to the 

Board with all of the regular monthly Board meeting materials. Ed said he could not speak on LAI’s 

behalf about a backup plan and invited the members of LAI’s Board that were in attendance to comment. 

Angela said that she thinks CCDDR’s POS agreement is in line with many of the example contracts from 

other SB 40 Boards that Ed sent to the Board. 

 

***Laura Martin left the meeting at 7:00 pm. 

 

Angela Richardson asked Jim Rogers and Mary Hayslett if they would like to add any comments. 

 

Public Comment 

 

Jim Rogers pointed out that Ed refers to the tax as the Senate Bill 40 Tax. It was originally called the 

Sheltered Workshop Tax. The name was changed and he does not know how that happened. LAI 

currently has $40,000 in accounts receivable from the Senate Bill 40. LAI thinks the voters pay that 

money to help the disabled people at LAI. They are waiting for CCDDR to pay them that money. He 

thinks it is very difficult to move forward if at every meeting someone mentions his very direct comment 

about not trusting Ed Thomas. He stated that is a fact and they do not trust him. He is not the only person 

who has that opinion. Going over that information over and over does not move things anywhere. 

 

Angela Richardson asked Jim if he believes LAI is owed the money regardless of the contract because of 

the way the bill was written. Jim responded that CCDDR is the one that amended the contract they had 

been working on together for years. They do not want to have their money held up because somehow 

Senate Bill 40 needed that money somewhere else. That money is paid for by the taxpayers and is meant 

to go to the employees with disabilities that work at LAI and it is unfair to take that money away from 

them. 

 

Ed Thomas asked Jim is LAI is planning on suing CCDDR. Jim responded that he could not discuss that. 

 

Angela St. Joan said that she is confused about where LAI is getting the idea that the Senate Bill 40 is 

trying to use the funding somewhere else. It is her understanding that the money is set aside and not 

touched for another purpose. It is standard practice to have those things in a contract. She does not 

understand where this is coming from and what she is missing. 

 



Jim Rogers said that he does not think she is missing anything. LAI feels very vulnerable when you can 

interrupt the flow of tax dollars meant for the employees that work for LAI and there can arbitrarily be a 

waitlist. 

 

Angela St. Joan asked what other sheltered workshops are doing when these things are in their contracts. 

Jim responded that he could not comment on that and it was irrelevant. They are worried about what is 

happening to them, not what is happening in other counties. 

 

Angela Richardson said that there is an official waitlist policy, not an arbitrary action, which applies to all 

agencies that we support. It is not an arbitrary decision to just not fund something, it is a waitlist policy 

with guidelines. Ed agreed that a waitlist policy has been implemented but there is currently no waitlist in 

effect. 

 

Jim said that there could be and that is the problem. 

 

Elizabeth Perkins said that from a State perspective, this is not uncommon. If funding changes then a 

waitlist is implemented but it is a fluid waitlist that moves as funding becomes available. A waitlist is not 

an uncommon practice. Elizabeth reiterated that she appreciates seeing LAI’s reports and hearing them 

presented each month. 

 

Angela St. Joan asked Jim if LAI would feel more comfortable with a cap in the contract. Jim responded 

that he could not comment on anything like that. Angela St. Joan asked if their board was working on any 

other ideas to resolve this and Jim responded that he could not comment on that. 

 

Angela Richardson wondered if forming a contract committee would help at all. The committee could 

hear feedback from funded agencies and take that into consideration when developing future contracts. 

 

Jim Rogers said that it is very simple. Take the one sentence out and it is done. 

 

Angela St. Joan asked what a suitable replacement safeguard to put in place would be? Jim Rogers said he 

does not have answer for that nor is he prepared to comment on that issue. He said the issue they are 

concerned with is that they have $40,000 owed to them and they would really like it, please. 

Paul DiBello said that without a signed contract they are not owed the money. Ro Witt agreed. Paul said 

that POS contracts have been signed in the past. Jim agreed they had been signed in the past but the 

problem is the waitlist. 

 

Angela Richardson said the conversation needs to be left for a contract committee. Ed would like to send 

out a notification to the Board that that is the intent and it could be solidified at the April meeting. The 

intent would be to hold a meeting in April. 

 

Motion by Ro Witt, second Brian Willey to create a Contract Committee and appoint Board members to 

that committee in April. 

 

            AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                          Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

          ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

Angela St. Joan asked LAI if they could bring forward recommendations for a replacement contract. Jim 

responded that he could do that right now--erase the one line with the Wait List. 

 



Angela Richardson said that CCDDR would never ask LAI to act fiscally irresponsible and she would 

hope they would never ask CCDDR to act fiscally irresponsible. Not having a safeguard in the contract 

puts CCDDR in a position to act fiscally irresponsible. 

 

Adjournment of Open Session 

 

 

Motion by Brian Willey, second Ro Witt to adjourn the Open Session Board meeting. 

 

           AYE: Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson 

                                          Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt 

 

                                 NO: None 

 

         ABSTAIN: None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

The Open Session Board meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                       

___________________________________                              ___________________________________ 

Board Chairperson/Other Board Member                                  Secretary/Other Board Member 



Final 2023 Audit Report 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Camden County 
developmental  

disability resourCes 
 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

independent auditors’ report 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
             Page   
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ...................................................................   1 – 3  
 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ...................................................   4 – 9   
 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
 Statement of Net Position .....................................................................................    10 
  
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ........................    11  
  
 Statement of Cash Flows ......................................................................................    12 
   
 Notes to the Financial Statements ......................................................................... 13 – 23 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios…………...       24 
 
 Schedule of Contributions……………………..……………………………..    25 – 26  
 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 Statement of Revenues and Expenses by Program……………………………      27 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

1 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
 Camden County Developmental Disability Resources 
Camdenton, Missouri: 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Camden County Developmental 
Disability Resources as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources as of December 31, 
2023, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to 
be independent of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources, and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 



 

2 
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Camden County 
Developmental Disability Resources’ ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months 
beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit is conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources’ 
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  
 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources’ ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
 



 

3 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of changes in net pension liability and related 
ratios and contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Camden County Disability Resources’ basic financial statements. The 
schedule of revenues and expenses by program is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of revenues and 
expenses by program is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
 

 
EVERS & COMPANY, CPA's, L.L.C. 
Jefferson City, Missouri 
 
March 12, 2025 
 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
December 31, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

 
4 

 
The discussion and analysis of the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board doing business as Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) financial performance provides an overall 
review of CCDDR’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2023.  The intent of this 
discussion and analysis is to look at CCDDR’s financial performance as a whole; readers should 
also review the basic financial statements to enhance their understanding of CCDDR’s financial 
performance. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Key financial highlights for Fiscal Year 2023 are as follows: 
 
• CCDDR’s liquid assets of cash and cash equivalents were $1,261,640.73 and $1,263,744.27 

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.   
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.  These 
statements are prepared and organized so the reader can understand CCDDR as a financial whole. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  CCDDR, like other special purpose state and 
local governments, uses proprietary fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance related legal requirements.   
 
 Proprietary Funds 

The proprietary fund consists of one enterprise fund, which provides services to qualifying 
developmentally disabled individuals in Camden County. Enterprise fund accounting is 
permitted whenever a fee is charged to external users for goods and services. 
 
CCDDR’s proprietary fund statements include: 
 
The statement of net position presents information on CCDDR’s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and liabilities, with the difference between assets 
and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources being 
reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of CCDDR is improving or deteriorating. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
December 31, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

 
5 

 
While the statement of net position provides information about the nature and amount of 
resources and obligations at year-end, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position presents the results of CCDDR’s operations over the course of the year and 
information as to how the net position changed during the year.  This statement can be used 
as an indicator of the extent to which CCDDR has successfully recovered its costs through 
user fees and other charges.  All changes in net position are reported during the period in 
which the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the 
related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some 
items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as delayed collection of 
operating revenues and the expense of employee earned but unused vacation leave. 
 
The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from 
operation, capital, noncapital, and investing activities.  This statement summarizes the 
annual flow of cash receipts and cash payments, without consideration of the timing of the 
event giving rise to the obligation or receipts and excludes noncash accounting measures of 
depreciation or amortization of assets. 
 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.  The 
notes to basic financial statements can be found on pages 13 – 23 of this report. 

 
Other Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information which includes a schedule of changes in net pension 
liability and related ratios and a schedule of contributions.   
 
Financial Position 
The Statement of Net Position presents CCDDR as a whole. Table 1 provides a summary of 
CCDDR’s net position for 2023 and 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
December 31, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

 
6 

 

Assets 2023 2022
Current and Other Assets 2,541,718.89$   2,555,379.16$   
Capital Assets 642,312.79 658,508.10        
Noncurrent Assets -                     59.00                 

Total Assets 3,184,031.68     3,213,946.26     

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 163,715.80 105,474.37        

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 163,715.80 105,474.37        

Liabilties
Current Liabilities 80,627.94          105,896.66        
Noncurrent Liabilities 82,705.00          9,801.04            

Total Liabilities 163,332.94        115,697.70        

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 1,065,114.73 1,060,309.01     
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 9,330.00 21,652.00          

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,074,444.73 1,081,961.01     

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 632,511.75 630,764.53        
Restricted 1,477,458.06 1,490,997.39     

Total Net Position 2,109,969.81$   2,121,761.92$   

Table 1
Statement of Net Position

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
December 31, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

 
7 

 
Table 2 shows the changes in CCDDR’s net position for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022.  
 

Revenues 2023 2022
Operating Revenues

Charges for Services 1,394,171.52$   1,530,964.32$   
Grants 11,217.13 20,700.00          
Miscellaneous 276.06 263.00               

Nonoperating Revenues
Property Tax Receipts 1,015,550.17 1,080,813.82     
MEHTAP Grant 13,562.62 9,122.44            
Rent 5,712.00 5,712.00            
Interest Income 8,335.73 10,722.49          
Gain on Disposal of Assets 500.00               -                     

Total Revenue 2,449,325.23     2,658,298.07     

Expenses
Operating Expenses 2,461,117.34     2,439,074.30     

Total Expenses 2,461,117.34     2,439,074.30     

Change in Net Position (11,792.11)         219,223.77        

Net Position, Beginning of Year 2,121,761.92     1,902,538.15     
Net Position, End of Year 2,109,969.81$   2,121,761.92$   

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

 
 
While several revenue sources help to fund CCDDR, TCM income was the biggest contributor for 
2023 and 2022 accounting for 55.8% and 59.6% of total revenues, respectively. The assessed 
valuation is provided by subclasses of Real and Personal Property by the Camden County Assessor. 
 The tax levy was .0576 per $100 valuation, for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
December 31, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

 
8 

 
 
Capital Assets 
 
CCDDR had $642,312.79 and $658,508.10 (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in capital 
assets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  The investment in capital assets includes 
buildings, furniture and equipment, and vehicles.  CCDDR’s net revenue is used to finance 
capital investments.   
 

2023 2022

Land 61,399.50$     61,399.50$     
Construction in Progress 29,700.00       -                  
Structures, Buildings and Equipment Net 551,213.29     597,108.60

Totals 642,312.79$   658,508.10$   

Table 3
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

December 31, 2023 and 2022

 
 
Debt Administration 
 
CCDDR had one capital lease at the end of 2023 and 2022, which was the Sumner Computer Lease. 
The capital lease totaled $9,801.04 and $27,743.57 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 

2023 2022
Beginning of Year Balance 27,743.57$   43,621.63$   
Addition -               -               
Deletion (17,942.53)   (15,878.06)   
End of Year Balance 9,801.04$     27,743.57$   
Due Within One Year 9,801.04$     17,942.53$   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
December 31, 2023 

(Unaudited) 

 
9 

 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget: 
 
General Fund Budget Summary 
The Fiscal Year 2024 SB 40 Tax Funds Budget was prepared using a tax rate of .0576 per $100 of 
valuation and estimates of receipts to total expenditures. In the Fiscal Year 2024 Services Budget, 
Medicaid Services was prepared using an estimated total of services to be charged at a rate of $8.64 
per 5-minute unit provided while the Non-Medicaid and Ancillary Services were prepared using an 
estimate needed to offset the total expenses applicable to each service. Expenditures for the Fiscal 
Year 2024 Services Budget were based on the estimates of total receipts to equal total expenditures. 
 
Contacting CCDDR’s Financial Management 
This financial discussion and report is designed to provide a general overview of CCDDR’s 
finances for all those with an interest in CCDDR’s finances and to demonstrate CCDDR’s 
accountability for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in 
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to CCDDR’s 
Executive Director by phone at 573-317-9233 or mail at PO Box 722, Camdenton, MO 65020. 
 
 
 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2023 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

10 

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,261,640.73$   
Property Tax Receivable, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles 1,131,227.64
Ancillary Services Receivable 8,314.00
Medicaid Services Receivable 48,340.80          
Non-Medicaid Services Receivable 11,842.00
Prepaid Insurance 27,485.83
Prepaid Transit Services 52,867.89

Total Current Assets: 2,541,718.89

Capital Assets (net):
Land 61,399.50
Construction in Progress 29,700.00
Structures, Buildings, and Equipment 551,213.29

Total Capital Assets: 642,312.79

Total Assets 3,184,031.68     

Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 163,715.80
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 163,715.80        

Current Liabilities:
Accrued Expenses 70,826.90
Note Payable: Current Portion 9,801.04

Total Current Liabilities 80,627.94          

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability 82,705.00

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 82,705.00

Total Liabilities 163,332.94

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 1,065,114.73
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 9,330.00

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,074,444.73     

Net Investment in Capital Assets 632,511.75
Restricted 1,477,458.06

Total Net Position 2,109,969.81$   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

ASSETS

 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND  

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

11 

 

OPERATION REVENUES
Charges for Services 1,394,171.52$   
Grants 11,217.13
Miscellaneous 276.06

Total Operating Revenues 1,405,664.71     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative Expenses:

Public Meetings 2,875.17
Office Expenses 20,210.13
Dues 10,419.00
Training 1,298.00
Travel 737.39
Miscellaneous 1,279.29
Utilities 6,820.37
Insurance 25,565.44

Depreciation 48,395.31
Partnership for Hope 33,792.05
CCDDR Services 238,407.00
Housing Programs 9,776.00
Children's Services 290,754.84
Special Needs 3,583.19
Lake Area Industries 328,760.51
Professional Fees 27,599.50
Contracted Business Services 95,278.15
Repairs and Maintenance 5,205.58
Personnel Services 1,310,360.42

Total Operating Expenses 2,461,117.34     

Total Operating Income (Loss) (1,055,452.63)    

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property Taxes 1,015,550.17
Interest Income 8,335.73
MEHTAP Grant 13,562.62
Rent 5,712.00
Gain on Disposal of Assets 500.00

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,043,660.52     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (11,792.11)         

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,121,761.92

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 2,109,969.81$   

 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

12 

 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from customers and users 1,424,257.59$    
Payments to suppliers (1,172,846.00)     
Payments to employees (1,295,327.10)     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (1,043,915.51)     

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Property taxes 1,063,844.15      
Proceeds from rent 5,712.00

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities   1,069,556.15      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (32,200.00)          
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 500.00                
Capital Lease Payments (17,942.53)          
Proceeds from grant 13,562.62

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (36,079.91)          

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Receipts of interest 8,335.73

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 8,335.73             

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,103.54)            
 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,263,744.27      

Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of Year 1,261,640.73$    

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Net Operating Income (Loss) (1,055,452.63)$   
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income (Loss)
  to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 48,395.31
(Increase) Decrease in:

TCM Receivable 2,522.88             
Non Medicaid Receivable 10,532.00           
Ancillary Services Receivable 5,538.00             
Prepaid Insurance 2,343.48             
Prepaid Transit Services (52,867.89)          
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions (58,241.43)          
Net Pension Asset 59.00                  

Increase (Decrease) in:
Net Pension Liability 82,705.00           
Accrued Expenses (17,127.23)          
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (12,322.00)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (1,043,915.51)$   

 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
13 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  
 
Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) complies with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  Generally accepted 
accounting principles include all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements.  The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting 
policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this note.  
 
A. General Statement 

 
The Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board doing business as Camden County Developmental 
Disability Resources (CCDDR) was formed with voter approval in 1980 under the provisions 
of Chapter 205 of the Missouri Statutes.  Pursuant to the provisions, CCDDR is operated under 
the direction of nine members appointed by the Camden County Commissioners. 

 
B. Basis of Accounting 
 

The accrual basis of accounting is followed. Under this basis of accounting, revenue is 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

 
C. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

For the purpose of financial reporting, “cash and cash equivalents” includes all demand and 
savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity 
of three-months or less. 
 

D. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
 

E. Income Taxes 
 

No provision for income taxes has been recorded since CCDDR is exempt from income 
taxation. 
 
 

 
 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
14 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  (Cont’d.) 

 
F. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 

CCDDR receives property tax revenue from residents of Camden County.  The County collects 
its revenue on behalf of CCDDR and remits the collections to them monthly. CCDDR has 
determined that a portion of that revenue may be uncollectible. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $21,591.39. All other program related 
receivables have been deemed fully collectible at December 31, 2023. 
 

G. Structures, Buildings, and Equipment 
 

Structures, buildings, and equipment are carried at cost.  CCDDR’s policy is to depreciate 
structures, buildings, and equipment over the estimated useful lives of the assets by use of the 
straight line method. 
 
    Buildings  20 – 40 years 
    Furniture and Equipment   5 – 7 years 
    Vehicles     5 – 7 years 
 

H. Net Position 
 

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating revenues 
and expenses, capital contributions, and special items. Net position is classified in the 
following three components: 
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bond, 
notes or other borrowings, such as leases, that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvements of those assets, and increased by any unspent proceeds. 
  
Restricted – Consists of constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions of enabling legislation.  
Restricted net position includes: $82,705 restricted for net pension; and $1,4338,241 of 
Senate Bill 40 Tax Collections to be used in accordance with Chapter 205 of the Missouri 
Revised Statutes.  
 
Unrestricted – Consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or 
“net investment in capital assets”. It is CCDDR’s policy to first use restricted net position 
prior to the use of unrestricted net position when an expense is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 
 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
15 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Cont’d.) 

 
I. Operating Revenues  
 

CCDDR distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the 
CCDDR’s principal ongoing operations.  CCDDR’s principal operating revenues are charges 
for services provided to clients.  Operating expenses for CCDDR include the cost of services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 

J. Subsequent Events 
 

CCDDR evaluates events and transactions occurring subsequent to the date of the financial 
statements for matters requiring recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.  The 
accompanying financial statements consider events through March 12, 2025, which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued.   

 
NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS: 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – State statutes require that all deposits in financial institutions in excess of 
FDIC coverage be fully collateralized by U.S. Government obligations that have a market value not 
less than the principal amount of the deposits.  All deposits were held at one bank by CCDDR on 
December 31, 2023 and were either fully insured by FDIC or collateralized by pledged securities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
16 

 
NOTE 3 – PROPERTY TAXES: 
 
CCDDR’s property tax is levied by Camden County each October 1, based on the assessed value as 
of the previous January 1, for all real and personal property located in Camden County.  Assessed 
values are established by the County Assessor. 
 
Property taxes are billed by November 1 following the levy date, due by December 31 and 
considered delinquent on January 1.  A lien is placed on the property as of March 1 if delinquent 
taxes are not paid. 
 
The assessed valuation of the taxable tangible property of CCDDR was as follows: 
 
                             2022  
 Camden County $1,874,269,976  
 
The tax levy per $100 of assessed valuation of taxable tangible property for 2022 was $0.0576. 
 
The ratio of taxes received to taxes assessed (collection rate) for the year ended December 31, 2023 
was as follows, categorized by levy dates: 
       
     2022 Levy  
       
Assessed valuation  $1,874,269,976 
Levy per $100 of assessed valuation              .000576 
Current Taxes Assessed  $1,079,579.51 
Collection Rate: 
 
 Total Taxes Received in 2023  $  1,051,550.17  
 Current Taxes Assessed      1,079,579.51 
 
Percentage of Total Collection  94.06%   

 
Collection percentages can vary depending upon timing of collections.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
17 

 
NOTE 4 - RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
CCDDR is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters.  CCDDR’s insurance protection for general 
liability, employee benefit liability, and automatic liability is provided by Missouri Public Entity 
Risk Management Fund, of which CCDDR is a participating member.  No significant reduction in 
insurance coverage occurred during the year and no settlements exceeded insurance coverage during 
any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
The Missouri Public Entity Risk Management Fund is structured such that member premiums are 
based on an actuarial review that will provide adequate reserves to allow the Fund to meet its 
expected financial obligations.  The Fund has the authority to assess its member’s additional 
premiums should reserves and annual premiums be insufficient to meet the Fund’s obligations. 
 
CCDDR is also insured by Cincinnati Insurance Company for potential worker related accidents 
and casualty claims. 
 
NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN: 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System 
(LAGERS) and additions to/deductions from LAGERS fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by LAGERS. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable 
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 

Plan description. The Camden County Developmental Disability Resources defined benefit 
pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. The Camden County Developmental Disability Resources participates in the 
Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS). LAGERS is an agent 
multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established in 1967 and 
administered in accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755. As such, it is LAGERS responsibility 
to administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The 
plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and is tax exempt. The 
responsibility for the operations and administration of LAGERS is vested in the LAGERS 
Board of Trustees consisting of seven persons. LAGERS issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This report 
may be obtained by accessing the LAGERS website at www.molagers.org. 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
18 

 
NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN:  (Cont’d.) 

 
Benefits provided. LAGERS provides retirement, death and disability benefits. Benefit 
provisions are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the options available in 
the state statutes governing LAGERS. All benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. 
Employees who retire on or after age 60 with 5 or more years of service are entitled to an 
allowance for life based upon the benefit program information provided below. Employees 
may retire with an early retirement benefit with a minimum of 5 years of credited service and 
after attaining age 55 and receive a reduced allowance. 
 

                                                               2023 Valuation 
Benefit Multiplier: 1.00%  
Final Average Salary: 3 years 
Member Contributions: 0% 

 
Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member’s retirement 
allowance subsequent to the member’s retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on the 
increase in the Consumer Price Index and is limited to 4% per year.  
 
Employees covered by benefit terms.  At June 30, 2023, the following employees were covered by 
the benefit terms: 
  

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits   8 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits   1 
Active employees 17 
 26 

 
Contributions. The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially 
determined rate, as established by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated 
amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued liability. Full-time employees of the employer do 
not contribute to the pension plan. Employer contribution rates are 8.2%.  
 
Net pension liability. The employer’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of February 28, 2023.  
 
Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the February 28, 2023, actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 

Inflation 2.75% wage inflation; 2.25% price inflation 
Salary Increase 2.75% to 6.75% including wage inflation 
Investment rate of return 7.00%, net of investment expenses 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
19 

 
NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN:  (Cont’d.) 
 
The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, were 115% of the PubG-2010 
Retiree Mortality Table for males and females. The disabled retiree mortality tables, for post-
retirement mortality, were 115% of PUBNS-2010 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table for males and 
females. The pre-retirement mortality tables used were 75% of the PubG-2010 Employee Mortality 
Table for males and females of general groups and 75% of the PubS-2010 Employee Mortality 
Table for males and females of police, fire, and public safety groups.  
 
Mortality rates for a particular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2020 mortality 
improvement scale to the above described tables.  
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the February 28, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period March 15, 2015 through February 29, 2020. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model 
method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table. 
 

 
Asset Class 

Target 
 Allocation 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Alpha              15.00%                          3.67% 
Equity               35.00%                                4.78% 
Fixed Income               31.00%                                1.41% 
Real Assets               36.00%                                3.29% 
Strategic Assets                 8.00%                                5.25% 
Cash/Leverage             -25.00%                        -0.29% 
   

Discount Rate. The single discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.00%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee 
contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined 
rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total pension liability.  
 
 
 
 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
20 

 
NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN:  (Cont’d.) 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 Increase (Decrease) 
 Total  

Pension 
Plan 

Fiduciary 
Net 
Pension 

 Liability Net Position Liability 
 (a) (b) (a) – (b) 
Balances at 6/30/2022  $ 766,823  $  766,882 $      (59) 
Changes for the year:    
     Service Cost       52,546            -    52,546 
     Interest       53,910            -    53,910 
     Difference between expected and actual experience       80,232            -    80,232 
     Contributions – employer             -       72,872   (72,872) 
     Contributions – employee             -            -          - 
     Net Investment income             -       29,464   (29,464) 
     Change in assumptions             -            -          - 
     Benefit Payments, including refunds     (45,795)     (45,795)          - 
     Administrative expense             -       (3,197)      3,197 
     Other changes             -         4,785     (4,785) 
          Net Changes     140,893       58,129   (82,764) 
Balances at 6/30/2023 $  907,716 $   825,011  $  82,705 
 
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the 
Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what 
the employer’s Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
(6.00%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate. 
 

                            Current Single Discount 
 1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase 
 6.00% 7.00% 8.00% 

Total Pension Liability (TPL)    $1,064,840             $907,716        $ 781,309 
Plan Fiduciary Net Pension         825,011            825,011           825,011 
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) (NPL)    $   239,829          $  82,705        $  (43,702) 
  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
21 

 
NOTE 5 – RETIREMENT PLAN:  (Cont’d.) 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the employer recognized pension expense of $78,134.82. 
The employer reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources:  
 

 Deferred  Deferred 
 Outflows  Inflows 
 of Resources  of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual 
 experience 

$  117,108     $     (125) 

Changes in assumptions               -  (9,205) 
Net difference between projected and actual 
 earning on pension plan investment 

          
      14,747 

  
- 

Employee contributions subsequent to the    
 measurement date 

          
      31,861 

  
- 

       Total $   163,716    $   (9,330) 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
                                   

 
Year ending 
December 31: 

Net Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

2024      $        25,208 
2025                18,706 
2026                36,135 
2027                22,832 
2028                13,458 
Thereafter                  6,186 
Total      $      122,525 

 
NOTE 6 – TAX ABATEMENTS: 
 
Pursuant to the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation Act, Sections 99.800 through 99.865, 
RsMO, as amended (the “TIF Act”), cities and counties (governments) may adopt a redevelopment 
plan (“TIF plan”) that provides for the redevelopment of a “blighted area”, “conservation area”, or 
“economic development area” located within the boundaries of the government to encourage 
increased property valuations. 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
22 

 
NOTE 6 – TAX ABATEMENTS: (Cont’d.) 
 
In general, once approved, the City of Osage Beach enters into a development contract with the 
developer covering the development project, including property tax abatements. There are no 
provisions for recapture since the taxes abated are for property development and used to fund 
project and service debt. As of December 31, 2023, tax abatements for the District consisted of the 
following:  
 

 Property tax abatements attributable to the increase in assessed value of the property in 
the TIF district over the assessed value of the property before the development. Total 
property taxes abated under the agreements totaled: 

 
Camden County 

$    1,329.23 
 

NOTE 7 - STRUCTURES, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT: 
 
Structures, buildings, equipment, and accumulated depreciation by major class are as follows at 
December 31, 2023: 

Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
   Land 61,399.50$         -$               -$               61,399.50$         
   Construction in Progress -                      29,700.00       -                 29,700.00           
     Total capital assets, not being 
       depreciated 61,399.50           29,700.00       -                 91,099.50           

Capital assets being depreciated:
   Buildings 896,437.74         2,500.00         -                 898,937.74         

Furniture and equipment 138,113.63         -                 -                 138,113.63         
Vehicles 6,740.00             -                 -                 6,740.00             

     Total capital assets, being 
       depreciated 1,041,291.37      2,500.00         -                 1,043,791.37      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Buildings (338,708.34)        (29,738.88)     -                 (368,447.22)        

Furniture and equipment (98,734.43)          (18,656.43)     -                 (117,390.86)        
Vehicles (6,740.00)            -                 -                 (6,740.00)            

     Total accumulated depreciation (444,182.77)        (48,395.31)     -                 (492,578.08)        

Total capital assets being depreciated,
 net 597,108.60         (45,895.31)     -                 551,213.29         

 Capital assets, net 658,508.10$       (16,195.31)$   -$               642,312.79$       

 
Total depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $48,395.31. 

 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
23 

 
NOTE 8: NOTES PAYABLE: 
 
CCDDR has entered into a note payable for financing the acquisition of computer equipment.  
 
The following is a schedule debt service payments for the note payable at December 31, 2023: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2024 9,801.04$          336.59$             10,137.63$           
Total 9,801.04$          336.59$             10,137.63$           

 
The following is a summary of long-term debt activity of the primary government for the year 
ended December 31, 2023: 
 

Beginning 
Balances Additions Deletions

Ending 
Balance

Due Within 
One Year

Note Payable 27,743.57$   -$             17,942.53$    9,801.04$     9,801.04$     
Long-Term Liabilities 27,743.57$   -$             17,942.53$    9,801.04$     9,801.04$     

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED 
SUPPLEMENTARY 

INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
24 

 
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

A. Total Pension Liability
1. Service Cost 52,546$      54,713$      54,184$      49,115$      42,617$      41,180$      35,211$      31,053$      26,765$      
2. Interest on Total Pension Liability 53,910        48,732        43,737        35,460        28,930        24,578        19,356        15,332        11,123        
3. Changes of Benefit Terms -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
4. Difference between expected and actual

experience of the Total Pension Liability 80,232        8,815          30,175        39,236        23,956        (641)            19,112        (2,175)         19,802        
5. Changes in Assumptions -              -              (16,018)       -              -              -              -              10,789        -              
6. Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (45,795)       (28,943)       (10,268)       (13,925)       (3,535)         (7,963)         (1,323)         (1,752)         (1,734)         
7. Net Change in total pension liability 140,893      83,317        101,810      109,886      91,968        57,154        72,356        53,247        55,956        
8. Total pension liability - beginning 766,823      683,506      581,696      471,810      379,842      322,688      250,332      197,085      141,129      
9. Total pension liability - ending 907,716$    766,823$    683,506$    581,696$    471,810$    379,842$    322,688$    250,332$    197,085$    

B. Plan Fiduciary Net Position
1. Contributions - employer 72,872$      71,915$      74,163$      66,677$      54,490$      48,941$      47,106$      34,888$      32,891$      
2. Contributions - employee -              -              -              - -              -              -              -              -              
3. Net Investment Income 29,464        841             141,870      7,268          25,143        38,162        28,798        171             3,367          
4. Benefit payments, including refunds of

employer contributions (45,795)       (28,943)       (10,268)       (13,925)       (3,535)         (7,963)         (1,323)         (1,752)         (1,734)         
5. Pension Plan Administrative Expense (3,197)         (2,763)         (2,467)         (2,959)         (2,659)         (1,452)         (1,602)         (1,431)         (1,305)         
6. Other (Net Transfer) 4,785          17,329        (95)              4,603          (968)            (7,170)         (1,138)         (1,203)         7,580          
7. Net Change in plan fiduciary net position 58,129$      58,379$      203,203$    61,664$      72,471        70,518        71,841        30,673        40,799        
8. Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 766,882      708,503      505,300      443,636      371,165      300,647      228,806      198,133      157,334      
9. Plan fiduciary net position - ending 825,011$    766,882$    708,503$    505,300$    443,636$    371,165$    300,647$    228,806$    198,133$    

C. Net pension liability / (asset) 82,705        (59)              (24,997)       76,396        28,174        8,677          22,041        21,526        (1,048)         

D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 90.89% 100.01% 103.66% 86.87% 94.03% 97.72% 93.17% 91.40% 100.53%

E. Covered - employee payroll 893,512$    796,817$    864,353$    753,821$    689,999$    587,402$    646,825$    512,552$    477,451$    

F. Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll 9.26% (0.01)% (2.89)% 10.13% 4.08% 1.48% 3.41% 4.20% (0.22)%

*Ultimately 10 Fiscal Years will be displayed.



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

 
 SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

  For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

25 

 

 
 

Fiscal Year   

 Actuarially 
Determined  

Contribution 
Contribution 
in Relation   

Contribution  
Deficiency 

Covered 
Employee  

Payroll 

Contribution 
As 

Percentage 
2014  $      32,928.34      32,928.24           0.10      457,337.46 7.20% 
2015     33,255.02    33,255.26           (0.24)   481,956.26       6.90% 
2016     39,150.57    39,150.69 

 
         (0.12)   567,401.14       6.90% 

2017 
 

  50,209.92    50,209.97 
 

          (0.05)    687,807.72       7.30% 
2018 

 
   48,951.63    48,951.48 

 
          0.15    627,584.81 7.80% 

2019 
 

   61,199.36    61,199.47 
 

          (0.11)    755,546.84 8.10% 
2020     69,941.40    69,941.59             (0.19)    832,635.28 8.40% 
2021     73,658.79    73,659.03           (0.24)    846,653.97 8.70% 
2022     76,037.80    76,037.77            0.03    916,118.65 8.30% 
2023     65,934.24    65,934,38            (0.14)    804,076.34 8.20% 

        



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Camdenton, Missouri 

 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

  For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

26 

 

 
 
 

Valuation Date:   February 28, 2023 
 
Notes:   The roll-forward of total pension liability from February 28, 2023 to 

   June 30, 2023 reflects expected service cost and interest reduced by  

   actual benefit payments and administrative expenses.  
 
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:  
Actuarial Cost Method  Entry Age Normal and Modified Terminal Funding 
 
Amortization Method 

 

A level percentage of payroll amortization method is used to amortize 
the UAAL over a closed period of years. If the UAAL (excluding the  
UAAL associated with benefit changes) is negative, then this amount is 
amortized over the greater of (i) the remaining initial amortization  
period or (ii) 15 years. 

 

   
Remaining Amortization Period Multiple bases from 7 to 15 years 
Asset Valuation Method  5-Year smoothed market; 20% corridor 
Inflation   2.75% wage inflation; 2.25% price inflation 
Salary Increases   2.75% to 6.75% including wage inflation 
Investment Rate of Return  7.00%, net of investment expenses 
Retirement  Age   Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of 

   eligibility condition. 
Mortality   The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, 

   used in evaluating allowances to be paid were 115% of the PubG- 
   2010 Retirement Mortality Table for males and females. The disabled 
   retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement mortality, used in 
   evaluating allowances to be paid were 115% of the PubNS-2010 

  
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table for males and females. The pre- 
retirement mortality tables used were 75% of the PubG-2010 

  Employee Mortality Table for males and females of General groups 
  and 75% of the PubS-2010 Employee Mortality Table for males and  
  females of Police, Fire and Public Safety groups. 
   
  Mortality rates for a particular calendar year are determined by 
  applying the MP-2020 mortality improvement scale to the above 
  described tables. 
   
Other Information:  None 

   
   



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL 
DISABILITY RESOURCES 

Camdenton, Missouri 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
BY PROGRAM 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 
27 

     
SB40 TAX SERVICES TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services -$                 1,394,171.52$   1,394,171.52$   
Grants -                   11,217.13 11,217.13          
Miscellaneous -                   276.06 276.06               

Total Operating Revenues -                   1,405,664.71     1,405,664.71     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative Expenses:

Public Meetings -                   2,875.17 2,875.17            
Office Expenses -                   20,210.13 20,210.13          
Dues -                   10,419.00 10,419.00          
Training -                   1,298.00 1,298.00            
Miscellaneous -                   1,279.29 1,279.29            
Utilities -                   6,820.37 6,820.37            
Insurance -                   25,565.44 25,565.44          
Depreciation -                   48,395.31 48,395.31          
Travel -                   737.39 737.39               

Partnership for Hope 33,792.05 -                     33,792.05          
CCDDR Services 238,407.00 -                     238,407.00        
Housing Programs 9,776.00 -                     9,776.00            
Children's Services 290,754.84 -                     290,754.84        
Special Needs 3,583.19 -                     3,583.19            
Lake Area Industries 328,760.51 -                     328,760.51        
Professional Fees -                   27,599.50 27,599.50          
Contracted Business Services -                   95,278.15 95,278.15          
Repairs and Maintenance -                   5,205.58 5,205.58            
Personnel Services -                   1,310,360.42 1,310,360.42     

Total Operating Expenses 905,073.59      1,556,043.75     2,461,117.34     

Net Operating Income (Loss) (905,073.59)     (150,379.04)       (1,055,452.63)    

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property Taxes 1,015,550.17 -                     1,015,550.17     
Interest Income 7,070.39 1,265.34 8,335.73            
MEHTAP Grant 13,562.62 -                     13,562.62          
Rent -                   5,712.00 5,712.00            
Gain on Disposal of Assets 500.00               500.00               

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,036,183.18   7,477.34            1,043,660.52     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 131,109.59$    (142,901.70)$     (11,792.11)$       

 



IWYP February  
2025 Reports 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Narrative:  

 

I Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are not for profit, 501(c)3 

Missouri Methodist supported children’s programs dedicated to providing 

exceptional care to children 3 to 12 years of age. Highly qualified staff 

provide gentle and loving support to children with the primary goal of aiding 

each child to reach their fullest potential. Independently created curriculum 

incorporates a skill set geared toward individual goals and is focused on 

reaching physical, mental, and spiritual growth in a safe environment. I 

Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are housed by Camdenton 

United Methodist Church and gladly accepts subsidized payments to help 

support family needs. All child care programs strive to create an 

environment that is inclusive to the needs of each child while fostering a 

love of learning and friendships. Inquiries into the various outreach 

programs supported by Camdenton United Methodist can be made by 

calling 573-346-5350 or visiting our website at CamUMC.org. 

 

 
 
  
 
 



CamUMC currently offers support through several children and youth programs. The current 
attendance numbers are:   
21 I Wonder Y Preschoolers 
14 WAVE After-School Care (Elementary Age) 
22 CamUMC J-Force (Youth- Elementary Age) 
14 CamUMCYF (Youth- Junior High and High School Age) 
Currently, one participant qualifies for CCDDR assistance for one-on-one care. We offer an avg. 
of 2 hours of care to this child each day (Monday-Friday), and all day care on some of the days 
when public school is closed or released early. 
 
IWY and WAVE will be closed April 18-21 for Easter Break.  
CamUMC will host a community Easter Egg Hunt and Celebration on April 19 from 10am-12pm  
J Force and Youth meetings are held every week during the school session months and include 
special outings. 
Preschool is offered Monday - Friday 7:00 am - 5:30 pm 
All Day School-Age care is offered Monday - Friday 7:30 am - 5:30 pm and 3:00 pm - 5:30 pm 
 



CamUMC I Wonder Y Preschool 
Cash Flow Statement Feb. 2025 
 
Inflow: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​     YTD Jan.-Feb. 2025 
 

Tuitions:​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $    9011.13    ​       $ 15995.13 
Donations: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $    1198.00   ​        $   1198.00 
DESE: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      *0.0​        $   *0.0  
CCDDR: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      654.90​        $  1161.27 
DESE Remittance: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $    4328.16​        $  4328.16 

 
Total Income:              ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $    15192.19​        $  23880.56 
 
Outflow: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​  
​ Staff Expenses: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      7716.50         $  16082.50 
​ Food:                ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      555.53           $      555.53 
​ Supplies:           ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      288.75           $      288.75 
​ Misc Expenses: (printer, shared utilities) ​ ​ $      350.00           $      700.00 
​ Training​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      0.0        ​        $    0.0 
               
Total Expenses: ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      8910.78​        $   17626.78 
 
Total cash in = ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      15192.19        $   23880.56 
Total cash out = ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $      8910.78          $    17626.78 
Total profit = ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​             $       6281.41         $      6253.78 
Net liquidy = ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $   14852.00           $    14852.00 
Net Assets = ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $ 275439.00​        $   275439.00 
Net liabilities = ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $     7996.06​        $      7996.06 
Net equity= ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $     6855.94​        $     6855.94 
Shareholders equity = ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ $ 275439.00​        $   275439.00 
 
*Error in processing payments from DESE. Some of these are in remittance review as of 
03/03/2025. In February of 2025, we received a total of $4553.09 in remittance payments from 
DESE and those figures will reflect on the Feb. 2025 Cash Flow statement. For this year, I will 
include a space for remittance payments to better reflect overall cash flow.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CLC February  
2025 Reports 

 



 

CHILDREN’S LEARNING CENTER  

AGENCY UPDATE/PROGRESS REPORT 

March 11, 2025 

 

o CHILD COUNT/ATTENDANCE 

 

The Step Ahead program has 37 children enrolled.  

 

27 out of 37 children enrolled have special needs or developmental delays.  

 

We have 1 one on one children in attendance full time, 3 one on one children part time, 3 one on one 

children after school, & 16 day habilitation children with varying schedules.  

 

We have a few full time enrollment spots available specifically set aside for CCDDR clients.  

 

This fall we will have a number of openings and encourage current clients to be placed on our 

waitlist and tour before our busy summer session. 

  

o COMMUNTY EVENTS 

 

Attending:  

Adrienne and Megan attended our first quarterly provider meeting and planning with the 

United Way. This meeting had information on trainings available and events happening soon. 

 

Current / Upcoming: 

 

o GENERAL PROGRAM NEWS 

- CLC is always looking for providers (SLP, OT, PT, SI) to join our First Steps Agency. 

- We are making changes to our school calendar to reflect CLC being open for children on March 

24th and April 17th. These days were originally scheduled to be teacher work days. We will also 

be significantly shortening our end of the year break and are changing other teacher work days 

and breaks due to lost funding during these closures.  

 

o GRANTS/FUNDRAISERS 

Pizza for a Purpose is this Friday, March 14th at 6pm at Redhead’s Lakeside Grill. Please feel 

free to share our event and attend if you are able! We have several families planning to attend as 

well. We are hoping that this event will help raise needed funds for CLC. 































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2024 Agency 
Performance Measures 



Description
1st Qtr 

2024

2nd Qtr 

2024

3rd Qtr 

2024

4th Qtr 

2024
YTD 

Agency 

YTD Goal

Goal 

Met?

Monthly Reports Completed on Time 97.5% 97.5% 100.0% 100.0% 98.7% 95% Yes

Quarterly Reports Completed on Time 98.9% 99.2% 98.4% 100.0% 99.1% 95% Yes

New Clients Contacted by Their SC within 5 Business Days of Eligibility Determination 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100% Yes

New Clients' ISP Meeting is Held within 30 Days of Eligibility Determination 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100% Yes

ISPs Sent to RSRO 21 Days Prior to Implementation 37.9% 68.6% 75.0% 74.1% 64.9% 95% No

Annual ISP Completed by Effective Date 93.1% 95.7% 92.9% 100.0% 95.8% 95% Yes

ISPs Submitted Through QA Process Passed 69.0% 68.7% 62.4% 60.6% 64.4% 70% No

Agency Average SC Billable Time vs. Time Worked 78.5% 74.2% 69.4% 82.9% 75.6% 80% No

Response Rates for Client/Guardian Satisfaction Surveys 34.5% 28.6% 35.7% 27.2% 30.9% 30% Yes

My SC Made a Difference in My Life 85.0% 70.0% 85.0% 86.4% 81.7% 80% Yes

I Received Information About Exploitation, Personal Protection, and Risk Reduction 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 100.0% 96.3% 100% No

My SC was Available When Needed 95.0% 85.0% 90.0% 100.0% 92.7% 90% Yes

My SC Saw Me Frequently Enough 100.0% 90.0% 70.0% 95.5% 89.0% 90% No

I am Satisfied with Services Provided by My SC & CCDDR Staff 95.0% 95.0% 85.0% 100.0% 93.9% 90% Yes

I Contributed to the Development of My ISP 95.0% 95.0% 85.0% 100.0% 93.9% 100% No

Review CCDDR will Review Policies, Plans, Manuals, etc. Annually 30.7% 59.1% 78.7% 100.0% 100.0% 100% Yes

A
ge

n
cy

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce
C

li
e

n
t 

Su
rv

e
ys

2024 Agency Performance Measures



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2024 Performance 
Improvement Plan 


	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	03-11-2025 Open Session Minutes
	Cover Page to Final 2023 Audit Report
	Camden County Developmental Disability final audit report 12-31-23
	Cover Page to IWYP Feb Reports
	IWYP Monthly Report
	Cash Flow Statement 2025 (1)
	Narrative for CCDDR (6)

	Cover Page to CLC Feb Reports
	CLC Monthly Report
	CLC Agency Report- March 2025
	CLC SB40 April Meeting

	Cover Page to 2024 Performance Summary
	CY 2024 Performance Summary
	Cover Page to PIP 2024

